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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Ramsarup Industries Limited (the “Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on
that date and a summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinaftet
referred to as the “Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Actread with the Cormpanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity for the year and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

e conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s)
specified under section 143(1 0) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
‘nuditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued hy the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtaiied by us
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our av dit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note No 33 of the Financial Statement which describes the accounting effect of the
Resolution Plan approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated 4th September, 2019,
which was subsequently challenged at different forums and achieved finality pursuant to an order of the Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India dated 12t May, 2022. The said adjustments are shown directly in Equity pursuant to the
directions provided by aforementioned Order and relevant Indian Accounting Standards as qotified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013. - i ’

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Our opinionon the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial
Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of the internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal control system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management. ‘

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other matter

The financial statements for the previous year ended 31st March, 2024 were reviewed by another auditor who have
expressed an unmodified opinion on the statements dated 9th May, 2024, whose reports have been furnished to us
and which have been relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit of the financials.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure A", a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

i.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

ii. Inouropinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as itappears
from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 3(f) below on reporting under
rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 (as amended).

iii.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account.

iv.  Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 as amended.

v.  Onthebasis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025 taken onrecord
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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Vvi.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B". Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting,

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(a) The Company does not have any pending litigations.

(b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

(d) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(if) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ji) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

(e) Nodividend has been paid or declared by the company during the year.,

() The reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April
2023.
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a. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail features being
tampered with.

As per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, reporting under Rule 11 (g)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for the record retention, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the
statutory requirements.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 306033E/E300272

Vivek Agarwal
Partner
Membership No: 301571

UDIN: 2530|574 BMNGEQOU 4223

Place: Kolkata

Date: ) 0 MAY 7075
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020('the order”) issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act,2013:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B)  According to the information & explanation given to us, the Company does not hold any intangible
asset. Hence, reporting under the clause 3(i)(a)(B) is not applicable to the company

(b)  All Property, Plant and Equipment (including right- of-use assets) have been physically verified by the
management during the year and there is a regular programme of verification of all the Property, Plant
and Equipment over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
‘size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lease) as disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company, expect the land situated in Durgapur as disclosed in
note 43(]) to the financial statements.

(d)  According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2025.

(e)  According to the information and explanation provided to us, there are no proceedings initiated or are
pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) As per our examination and the information provided to us, the physical verification of inventory
(excluding stocks with third parties) has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management
during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such verification by Management is
appropriate. and as explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

(b) records of the Company, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns filed by the
company to banks against sanctioned working capital limits are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.
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(iif)  According to the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the company, the company has not made investments in, provided any security or granted any advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other .
parties during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the order is not applicable to
the Company.

(iv)  According to information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not granted any loans, made
investments, provided guarantees and securities in the current year that are covered under the provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting on clause 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits with the meaning of
sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to extent applicable. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed
by Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, However, the maintenance of such cost records has not been specified by Central
Government for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the
Order is notapplicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,duty of
Custom, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by
us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of applicable statutory dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount payable in respect of
Income tax, Goods and Service tax, Customs duty, cess and other material statutory dues whichever
applicable, which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961).

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.
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(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not taken any term loans during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during
the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Hence, clause 3(ix)(e) of the
Order is not applicable.

()  The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix) (f)of the Order is not applicable.

x) (a) The Company has notraised any money by way of initial public officer and further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not
applicable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the Company has utilized
funds raised by way of private placement of debentures for the purpose for which they were raised
during the year.

(xi) (a) Tothe bestof our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this
report.

(c) Asrepresented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year and up to the date of this report. Therefore, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(xii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) and 3(xii)(b) of the Order are not applicable and hence not
commented upon.
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(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related
parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the
details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our examinations, in our opinion, the
Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as
per provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934. Accordingly, reporting
on clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act,1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c)  The Company is not registered as a Core Investment Company (CIC). Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no Core Investment Company
within the Group. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable,

(xvii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not incurred cash losses in
the current year and in the immediately preceding financial year, the company had incurred cash loss of Rs
84.99 lakhs. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable and hence
not commented upon, '

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company, the
statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year. As informed to us, there were no issues,
objections, or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors that would need to be brought to the attention of the
members of the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xviii) of the Order has been made.
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(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to spend any
amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to other than ongoing projects at the end of

the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

(b)  The Company has no on-going project as part of their CSR activity. Accordingly, clause (xx)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

For S KAGRAWAL AND CO CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 306033E/E300272

mw

Vivek Agarwal

Partner

Membership No: 301571

upIN: 25 3015%4 BMGHEOV 42238

Place: Kolkata

Date: J 8 MAY 2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 (vi) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of RAMSARUP INDUTRIES LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ramsarup Industries Limited (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal
financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating eifectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013. '

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financia! controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
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assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For S KAGRAWAL AND CO CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP
- Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 306033E/E300272

A

Vivek Agarwal
Partner

Membership No: 301571
UDIN: 2530 1574 BMGE OV 4227

Place: Kolkata

Date: U 8 MAY 2025



Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN : U65993WB1979PLC032113

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

I As at As at
Particulars Notes
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Assets
| Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 5 13,423 34 8,223313
(k) Right of Use Asset 494.62 49738
(c) Capital work-in-progress 5/ 1,71,085.33 1,49,034.55
(d) QOther non-current assets 6 1,597.09 2,421.76
Total non-current Assets 1,86,600.39 1,60,177.00
] Current assets
{a) Inventories 7 9,332.00 1,087.01
(b} Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 467.03 52,57
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 257.98 475,94
(i}  Bank balances Other than Abaove 10 5.49 141.71
(c} Current Tax Assets 11 395.20 198.97
(d) Other current asset 12 10,038.32 5,912.39
Total current Assets 20,496.02 7,B68.59
Total Assets 2,07,096.41 1,68,045.60
Equity and liabilities
1} Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 500.00 500.00
(b) Other equity 14 1,72,598.68 1,58,901.79
Total Equity 1,73,098.68 1,59,401.79
Liabilities
Y Non-Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liability 15 18.25 19.71
(i) Other Financial liabilities 16 346.86 158.03
(b) Long term provisions 17 52.76 27.11
Total non-current liabilities 417.87 204.85
v Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 14,353.72 b,664.06
Lease Liability 15 6.19 3.16
(i)  Trade payable 19
(a) Total outstanding dues of small enterprises
and micro enterprises 121.83 83.40
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than small enterprises and micro enterprises. 16,728.51 1,506.98
(i) Other Financial liabilities 20 2,179.72 88.02
(c) Other current liabilities 21 106.95 65.87
{d) Short term provisions 22 82.94 27.47
Total current liabilities 33,579.86 8,438.96
Total equity and liabilities 2,07,096.41 1,68,045.60
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-45

Vivek Agarwal
Partner
Membership No : 301571

Date : 8th May 2025
Place: Kolkata

In terms of our report of even date attached
For § K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

|CAIl Firm Registration No - 306033E/E300272

L8

Avinash Gupta
Company Secretary
M.No. A35164

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Avraoda Utn g, p ﬁyaum L(

Anant Rajwanshy

Wholetime Director
DIN 07241971

Ziot =

Dev Kumar Tiwari
Director
DIN 02432511




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN : U65993WB1979PLC032113
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

- Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Notes
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Revenue
| |Revenue from operations 23 28,555.80 -
Il |OtherIncome 24 56.34 48.79
Il |Totalincome (I+11) 28,612.14 48.79
Expenses
a) |Costof Materials Consumed 25 26,530.45 -
b) [Changes in inventories 26 (1,732.38) -
¢) |Employee benefit expenses 27 812.16 -
d) |Finance cost 28 372.02 1.58
e) |Depreciation & amortisation expense 29 1,353.05 856.77
f) [Other expenses 30 714.09 48.69
IV [Total expenses 28,049.38 907.04
v |profit before exceptional items and tax(l1I-1V) 562.76 (858.24)
V1 |Exceptional items - -
VIl |Profit before tax(V-Vl) 562.76 (858.24)
VIl [Tax expense 31
a) Current tax = -
b) Deferred tax (Tax expenses) - -
c) Previous years tax - 85.09
IX |Profit for the year(VII-VII) 562.76 (943.34)
¥ |Other Comprehensive income
a) | Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit (15.87) -
liability/asset, net of tax effect
Income tax relating to these items ~ -
b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (15.87) -
Xl |Total comprehensive income for the year 546.89 (943.34)
Xl Earnings per equity share (Face value per equity share 32
Rs.10/-)
Basic (Rs.) 10.94 (18.87)
Diluted (Rs.) 5.59 (18.87)
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-45

In terms of our report of even date attached

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registratin No - 306033E/E300272

Vivek Agarwal
Partner

Membership No : 301571
Date : 8th May 2025
Place: Kolkata

Avivelda el vt 5‘30““"‘““? %

Avinash Gupta Anant Rajwanshy Dev Kumar Tiwari
Company Secretary Wholetime Director Director
M.No. A35164 DIN 07241971 DIN 02432511

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors




Ramsarup Industries Ltd,

CIN : U65993WB1979PLC032113
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

{All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the Year ended

For the year ended

31st March,2025

31st March, 2024

A) Cash flow from operating activities:

Net Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 562.76 (858.24)
Adjustments for :

{a) Depreciation 1,353.05 856.77

(b} Interest Income (56.34) (48.79)

(¢} Gain on sale of Assets - -

(d) Finance Cost 372,02 1.58

e} Remeasurement (Gain)/Loss on net defined benefit Plans (15.87)

()  Exceptional items - 0.27
Operating Profit / (Loss) before Working Capital Changes 2,215.62 (48.41)

Adjustments for:

{a)  (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (8,244,99) (269.59)

() (Increase) [ Decrease in Trade Receivables (414.46) (6.38)

(c)  (Increase) / Decrease in Other current assets (4,125.93) (2,611.68)

{d) (Increase} / Decrease in Other Non-current assets 824.67 (50.96)

(e} Increase [ (Decrease) in Trade Payable 15,259.97 470,55

(] Increase / (Decrease) in Non Current Other financial liabilities 188.82 -

(g} Increase [ (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 2,091.70 (2,042.89)

{(h)  Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabilities 41.10 93.08

(i) Increase / (Decrease) in provision 81.11 36.65
Cash flow from opearting activities before taxes 7,917.61 (4,429.63)
Direct Taxes Paid (net) (196.23) (103.97)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 7,721.38 (4,533.60)
B) Cash flow from investing activities :

(a) Interest Received 56.34 48,79

{b) Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (28,601.09) (23,799.41)

() Changes in Capital Advances = .

(d) Sale /Adjustment of Assets -

(e)  Decrease in Investments =
Met Cash Used In Investing Activities (B) (28,544.75) (23,750.62)
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

{a)  Allotment of Shares - -

{b) Changes in Other Equity 13,150.00 68,150.00

(c) Finance Cost (372.02) {1.58)

(d)  Lease liability (Current + Non Current) 1.58 -

(e) Borrowings from related parties - -

{f)  Proceeds from / (repayment of) borrowings 7.689.63 (42,216.33)
Net Cash Generated From Financing Activities (C) 20,469.19 25,932.09
Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (354.18) (2,352.13)
Cash and Cash equivalents at closing of the year 263.47 617.65
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the year 617.65 2,969.76

Notes to the cash flow statement

1. The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) -7

“Statemnent of Cash Flow".

2. Cash and cash eguivalent comprises of:




Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Balance with banks 257.53 475.17
Cash on hand 0.45 0.77
_|Fixed Deposit 5.49 141.71
Total 263.47 617.65

In terms of our report of even date attached
For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICALEirm Registfation Mo - 306033E/E300272
Vj arwal

Partner

Membership No : 301571
Place: Kolkata

Date : 8th May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

At

Avinash Gupta Anant Rajwanshy Dev Kumar Tiwari

Company Wholetime Director
Secretary Director DIN 02432511
M.No. A35164 DIN 07241971
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RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED is the subsidiary company of S S NATURAL RESOURCES PVT. LIMITED. The
Company is a Public Limited Company incorporated in India having its registered office at, 5, C.R Avenue, Kolkata-
700072, West Bengal, India. [t was incorporated as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing sponge iron.
The Board of Directors approved the Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2025 on 8 May, 2025.

Material Accounting Policy Information

a)

b)

Basis of Preparation:
(i) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind
AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time,

AllInd AS issued and notified till the financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors
have been considered in preparing these standalone financial statements.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all years unless otherwise stated.

(ii) Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31,2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.

Basis of Preparation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared-on an accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and
liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle,
paragraph 66 and 69 of Ind AS 1 and other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule I1I to the
Companies Act, 2013.

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain class of
financial assets/ liabilities, share based payments and net liability for defined benefit plans that are
measured at fair value/ amortized cost at the end of each reporting period.

The accounting policies adopted are the same as those which were applied for the previous financial year.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods and services.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, and all ivalues are rounded off to the nearest

| p;(\é "J-T—_‘\ 0
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lakhs.




RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH 2025

(c) Classification between Currentand Non-Current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

(1) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
(2) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
(3) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(4) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

i) Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue
of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liahilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents,

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(d) Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application
ofaccounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingentassets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the period. The preparation of Financial Statements require judgements, estimates and assumptions to be
made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities including contingent liabilities on the date of
the Financial Statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the finarcial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes
to the standalone financial statements.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material ad]ustment to the cwt ofassetsand

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: e Crmrt::;]';"‘ﬁ'
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RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(3) Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the yearend date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial
Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

i)

ii)

iii)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment on a written down method over estimated useful lives
of the assets. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived based on management estimates of the
future useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets and the estimates may change due to technological developments, competition,
changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the
depreciation charges.

Allowance for expected credit loss

The allowance for expected credit loss reflects management’s estimate of losses inherent in its credit portfolio.
This allowance is based on Company's estimate of the losses to be incurred, which derives from past experience
with similar receivables, currentand historical past due amounts, write-offs and collections, the careful monitoring
of portfolio credit quality and current and projected economic and market conditions. Should the present
economic and financial situation persist or even worsen, there could be a further deterioration in the financial
situation of the Company’s trade receivables compared to that already taken into consideration in calculating the
allowances is recognised in the Financial Statements.

Income taxes

Current tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable
taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted.
To determine the future taxable profits, reference is made to the latest available profit forecasts. Where the
temporary differences are related to losses, relevant tax law is considered to determine the availability of the
losses to offset against the future taxable profits. Recognition therefore involves judgement regarding the future
financial performance of the Company. The amount of deferred tax assets, considered realisable, however, could
reduce in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The
timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and
circumstances, which can be subject to change.

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations/ against the Company as iLisTn0CTa sible to predict the outcome of pending

matters with accuracy. {
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vi)

RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31** MARCH 2025

The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities and estimation for contingencies are reviewed regularly and
revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Employee Benefits

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed ateach reporting date.

Leases

The Company evaluates ifan arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification
of a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period ofa lease, together with both periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing
whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company
revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally
based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the Government.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the company's activities as
described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specific of each arrangement.

(a) Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred
to customers and the company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold. Revenue from the sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivables, net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates.

Other Operating Income

(i) Interest Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest ra erest income is included in the other
income in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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All other income is accounted for on accrual basis when right to receive is established unless otherwise specified.

C. Trade Receivable
A trade receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due).

D. Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Recognition and Measurement:

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Freehold land is carried at
historical cost

Historical cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use and present
value of any estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour,
allocation of directly attributable overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in bringing the item
to working condition for its intended use, and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located. The costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after
deducting the net proceeds from selling items produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition
are also added to the cost of self-constructed assets.

Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plantand equipment are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

(b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in
which they are incurred.

Major Inspection/ Repairs/ Overhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the item of
property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any Unamortized part
of the previously recognized expenses of similar nature is derecognized.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet

date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before
such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’

(¢) Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on written down value method at the rates determined based on
the useful lives of respective assets as prescribed in the Schedule 1L.of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Property, plant and equipment Useful Life
Leasehold improvement Over the contractual lease term
Buildings 5 years to 60 years
Plant and Equipment S5 years to 40 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years to 20 years
Office Equipment 3yearsto 10 years
Electrical Installations 10 years to 15 years

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of). Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipmentis
provided up to the date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

(d) Disposal of Assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

(e) Capital Work in Progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest
on amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connection with project
implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial
production, deducting the net proceeds from selling the items of scrap and /or other wastes generated during the
course of construction/erection of the Capital Assets.

E. Tra nd other ables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of the financial
year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period

F. Inventories

Inventories are valued at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. However, raw materials and other items
held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will
be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Method of Valuation:

Cost of raw materials has been determined by using moving weighted average cost method and comprises all costs of
purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct labour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable
production overheads and taxes as applicable. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity
of production facilities. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

/;—fﬁchartered
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Valuation of finished goods are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management's
estimate based on demand and market of the inventories.

(G) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the Balance sheet date.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which

will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

(H) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise balance with banks, cash on hand, cheques/ drafton hand
and short-term deposits net of bank overdraft with are readily convertible amounts of cash, having an original
maturity of three months or less, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, Cash and cash
equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(I) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognized when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, at Fair Value through Profit
and Loss (FVTPL) or at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective,
business model and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of financial instruments is determined
on initial recognition.

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective
is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method
(EIR)

~
S’

(ii) Financial assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets

and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
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of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured
at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

(:ii) Financial assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
Financial Instruments which do not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income are classified as Fair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if
objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amountequal to the lifetime expected credit losses
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the
company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at
amortized cost, asappropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

Borrowings

Afterinitial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as
well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs thatare an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance
costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The company derecognises a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the Financial Asset
expire or it transfers the Financial Asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A Financial
Liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(]) Employee Benefits

i._Short Term Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
services are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related sevvice
are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

ii._Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan"") covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Th
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employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the
end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the other comprehensive income in the year in which they
arise.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The estimated future payments which are denominated
in a currency other than INR, are discounted using market yields determined by reference to high-quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profitand loss.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as
past service cost.

The retirement benefit obligations recognized in the balance sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit
obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the
present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of
the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end
of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially determined
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise. Leaves under define benefit plans can be encashed only
on discontinuation of service by employee.

iii. Defined Contribution Plans

The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense in the Statement of
Profitand Loss, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognised as a liability. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or refund.

(K) Government Grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Company will comply with all the attached conditions. When the grant relates to an expense item,
itis recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Grants related to purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss over the periods and in the proportions in
which depreciation expense on those assets is recognized and presented within other operating revenue.

[}

Y
rr,f N
I =

;’/ (\6
;‘,’f( g TP - ARY - 252¢




RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31** MARCH 2025

(L) Borrowing Cost

(M)

(N)

(0)

(P)

Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the barrowings of
funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
Ccosts.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a
part of the cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. The Company considers a period of twelve months or more as a substantial period of
time.

Segment Reporting

Based on the synergies, risks and returns associated with business operations and in terms of Ind AS 108, the
Company is predominantly engaged in a single reportable segment of Iron and Steel during the year. The risks and
returns of existing captive power plants are directly associated with the manufacturing operations of Iron and
Steel hence treated as a single reportable segmentas per Ind AS 108. There is no separate geographical segment.

Earnings per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33. Basic earnings per equity
share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the net profit for the year, adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares, attributable to the
shareholders by the weight average number of the equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding
during the year except where the results are anti-dilutive.

Fair Values Hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

b Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

o Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

> Level 3 — Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is
decided by the management of the company considering the requirements of Ind AS and selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for long-term period. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Com
direct the use of the asset
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments: - fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable - variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date amounts expected to be
payable by the group under residual value guarantees - the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and - payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the group exercising that option Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

s any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less

s any lease incentives received any initial direct costs

s restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset's useful life. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

(Q) Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net

profit or loss for the year.

(i) Currentincome tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the year/period end date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously
(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in Financial Statements, Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

- 306030E 1 &
Kolkata *




RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH 2025

Current and deferred tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax isalso recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

(4) New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Adopted by the Company
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31st March, 2025
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB19879PLC032113
For the year ended 31 March, 2025
(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipment

g Right of use Land Railway Plant & Electrical Office [Furniture

Particulars Free Hold Land | asset(Lease |Developement| Factory Building Siding Machinery Installation | Equipme & Vehicles Total
Hold Land ) Cost s nts Fixtures

Gross block
Balance as at April 2023 201.59 1,356.73 8,167.84 0.33 48,953.92 5,766.94 279.60 | 120.50 134.39 64,981.86
Additions 17.50 - 547.36 - 112.38 677.24
Deductions - 659.74 - 659.74
Adjustments 5,508.94 - 84.46 |- 3,663.42 - 1,761.06 =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5,728.03 696.99 462.90 4,504.42 0.33 47,305.24 5,766.94 279.60 120.50 134.39 64,999.35
Additions 664.15 3,283.70 2,602.46 6,550.31
Deductions -
Adjustments -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 5,728.03 696.99 462.90 5,168.57 0.33 50,588.94 8,369.41 279.60 | 120.50 134.39 71,549.66
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 2023 - 196.85 - 3,945.40 0.33 45,273.48 5,480.76 278.78 | 116.28 130.00 55,421.88
Depreciation charge - 276 2.48 265.76 - 605.22 (2.16) (13.16) (1.80) (2.32) B856.77
Deductions - - - -
Adjustments 3,312.62 (1,848.59) {1,464.03) -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,312.62 199.61 2.48 2,362.57 0.33 44,414 .67 5,478.60 265.62 114.48 127.68 56,278.65
Depreciation charge - 2.76 2.56 226.83 - 922.23 198.67 - - - 1,353.05
Deductions - - - - - - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 3,312.62 202.37 5.04 2,589.40 0.33 45,336.91 5,677.27 265.62 | 114.48 127.68 57,631.71
Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,415.41 497.38 460.42 2,141.85 - 2,890.58 288.35 13.98 6.02 6.72 8,720.70
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,415.41 494.62 457.86 2,579.17 - 5,252.03 2,692.14 13.98 6.02 6.72 13,917.96

As pe clause 15.15 of the approved Resolution Plan, the Land situated at Durgapur which was owned by Vanguard Credit and Holding Private Ltd. shall stand transfer to Ramsarup Industries Lid. Since the
procedural part for the transfer of Durgapur land for Vanguard Credit and Holding Pvt. Lid. is under process of compiling the PPE register since takeover under CIRP, the same has been recorded at the nominal
value in the books.
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54 Capital work-in-progress

a)

¢ As at 31 March, = ; As at 31 s 4 As at 31
Particulars 3055 Additions during| ). -\ "5q,, |Additions during |\ 2025
: the year the year
Buildings 17,859.48 300535 |  20,864.83 3,027.71 | 2389254
Piant and Equipment 94,400.12 15,885.45 | 1,10,285.57 14,158.84 | 1,24,444.41
Others 15,308.13 2,576.02 17,884.15 4,864.23 22,748.38
E_m_ 1,27 ,567.73 21,466.82 1,49,034.55 22,050.78 | 1,71,085.33
CWIP Ageing Schedule
A in CWIP f iod of
Capital Work in Progress as on March 31, teunt I DEA PO S
2025 Less than 1 year|  1-2 years 2-3years |More than 3 years Total
Projects in Progress 27,250.79 21,466.82 5,210.63 1,17,157.09 | 1.71,085.33
Total 27,250.79 21,466.82 - 1,47,157.09 | 1,71,085.33
Capital Work in Progress as on March 31, AMOUREITEWIP-for 8 Por g of
2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years |More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 21,466.82 10,410.64 - 117,157.09 | 149.034.55
Total 21,466.82 10,410.64 - 1,17,157.09 | 1,49,034.55

Ramsarup Industries Ltd. was admitted into Corpoate Insolvency resolution Plan (CIRP) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 on 8th january, 2018. Resolution Plan submitted by S S Natural Resources Pvt.
Ltd and Shyam Sel and Power Ltd got approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) on 4th September 2019. Appeals filed against the abovesaid order were dismissed by Hon'ble National
Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) on 4th March, 2021. Due to multifarious litigations filed by several parties, the Resolution Plan and the implementation thereto, achieved finality pursuant to an order of the
Hon'ble Supreme Court of India on 12th May, 2022, After the acquistion, the company has started revamping the existing projecls which were suspended and further capex plan of Rs 74,700.00 Lakhs has been
approved by the Board for revamping the existing projects and new projects in the company. The projects are in progress with target lo implement and commision in phased manner.




b)

CW!P whose completion is overdue

Capital Work in Progress as on March 31,

Capital Work in Progress to be completed In

2025 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years |More than 3 years Total
| Direct Reduced Iron (DRI) 217.80 2,008.23 4,002.08 - 6,228.13
Captive Power Plant (CPP) 449.87 1,133.69 5,602.93 7,186.48
Mini blast Furnace (MBF) 13,236.63 10,354.27 3761967 61,210.56
Sinter Plant 2,949.74 7,128.79 22,251.63 32,330.16
Steel Melt Shop (SMS) -
Wire Division -
TMT -
Coke Oven 21.28 35,218.41 35,239.69
Oxygen Plant 361.28 1.01 13,286.95 13,649.24
Railway Siding 13.66 706.47 720.13
DI Pipe 6.96 14.42 21.38
Commeon 1,279.46 9,587.12 2,393.84 13,260.42
Total 18,515.39 30,955.28 1,20,375.52 - 1,69,846.20
Capital Work in Progress as on March 31, Capital Work in Progress to be completed In
2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years |More than 3 years Total
Direct Reduced lron (DRI) - 14,963.50 14,963.50
Captive Power Plant (CPPF) 12,516.94 12,5616.94
Mini blast Furnace (MBF) 26,587.85 26,587 .85
Sinter Plant 27,359.91 27,359.91
Steel Melt Shop (SMS) 24,192.86 24,192.86
Wire Division 21,653.09 21,653.09
TMT 293.58 293.58
Total - 1,27,567.73 - 1,27,567.73

Charte
alo 94,
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Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65983WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Al Amounis in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Other non current assets

Particulars HBRL Asat
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
{Unsecured, considered good) -
Capital Advances 1,600.83 2,318.25
Olher Receivables - 2082
Less: Credit impairment allowance 373 373
Securily Deposils - 86.43
Total 1,597.09 2,421.76
Inventories
e As at Asg at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Valued at lower of cost and Net Realisable Value
Raw Materials 212583 -
Finished Goods 1,732.38 -
By Products 081
Stores & Spares Parts 547297 1,087 .0t
Total 9,332.00 1,087.01
I { above, goods- in- transit
Slores & Spares 78.78 -
B|Trade Receivables
. As at Asat
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
{a} Considered good - Unsecured 469.38 52.57
(b} Considered good - Secured -
(C) Credil Impaired .
Less : Credit impairment allowance 2.35 -
Total 467.03 52.57

malrix

any other person

(b) There are no trade or other receivable which are eilher due from direclers or olher officers of the Company either severally or joinlly with

(a) In determining Ihe allowances for credit losses of lrade receivables, the Company has used a praclical expedient by compuling the expected credil loss allowance for
\rade receivables based on a provision matrix. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision

Trade receivables ageing schedule (Ageing is prepared en the basis of date of transaction)

March 31,2025 Ler::r::a:: § 6 maonths - 1 year| 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
g;:;duspmed Trade receivables — considered 41373 5.07 2976 2082 469.38
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — Significant B i ) )
increase in credit risk =
(iii) Undisputed Trade Rece|vablas — credit " . ~ ~
impaired ’
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables ~ considered good R ) K =
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables — Significant B 5 < )
inerease in credit risk N
{vi) Dispuled Trade Receivables — credil impaired - - - -
Less: Allowance for Credil Loss 2.07 0.03 0.15 0.10 Sa |
Total 411.66 5.04 29.61 20,72 - 467.03
Trade receivables ageing schedule (Ageing is prepared on the basis of date of transaction)
March 31,2024 L?-::n"t‘l:’: & 6 months - 1 year| 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total

gL:dndispuled Trade receivables — considered 2282 - 29.75 ] g2 57
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — Significant ) - _ R
increase in credil nisk
(iil) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credil R " B »
impaired )
(iv) Dispuled Trade recelvables — considered good . : : i
(v} Dispuled Trade Receivables — Significant ; : E -
increase in credit risk =
(vi) Dispuled Trade Receivables — credil impaired N . » o
Less: Allowance for Credil Loss = _ % - .

Total 22.82 - 29.75 - - 52.57




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Al Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As al
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Cash on Hand 0.45 0.7
Balances with bank: -
-Current Accounts 10.84 47517
= Cash Credit Account 245.69
Total 257.98 475.94
Bank Balances Other than above

2 As at As at
Fillack 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Fixed Deposit with Bank gza.01 909.268
Less ; Provision for Fixed / Term Deposits (136.62) -
Less . Amount earmarked for repayment as per resolution plan * (785.90) (7167.55)
Total 5.49 141.71

“The amount of Fixed Deposit above includes fixed deposits made by the Ex-RP with the bank representing the remaining amount payable lo the financial creditors
alongwith the interest earned and accrued thereon as per the NCLT approved Resolution Plan and earmarked to be adjusted/payable lo the respeclive financial creditors.

Current Tax Assels
Pariolars As at As at
articular 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Advance tax (Net of provisions Rs. NIL Previous Year Rs. NIL ) 395.20 198.97
y]
Total 395.20 198.97
Other current Assels
i As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Balances wilh Gowt. Authorities 8,153.70 591023
Prepaid Expenses 395 185
Advance against Salary 2.45 030
Advance lo Suppliers 1,749.57 -
Interest Accrued on FD* 128.65 -
Total 10,038.32 5,912.39
*Inlerest Accrued on FD is grouped wilh amount of Fixed Deposil under Nole No.10 Bank Balances other than above
Equity Share Capital
x As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
{a) Authorised share capital
71,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each {31st March, 2024- 71,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each ) 7.100.00 7.100.00
32 000,000 Preference Shares of Rs 10 each (3151 March, 2024- 32,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each) 3,200.00 3,200.00
Total 10,300.00 10,300.00
(b} Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
50.00.000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 500.00 500.00
Total 500.00 500.00
(¢} Reconciliation of equity shares outstandina at the end of the refurling period
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Particulars
Mumber of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares at the beginning of the year
Balance al the beginning ef the year 50,00,000 500 50,00.000 500
Less . Cancelled during the year . £ s .
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Equity shares at the end of the year 50,00,000 500 50.00,000 500

(d} Rights, preferences & restrictions attached to equily shares

meeling excepl in the case of interim dividend

amounts, if any, The distribution will be in propertion lo the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{e) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares in the Company

(&) The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is enlilled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general

(b) In the event of liquidation of he Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assels of the Company, after disiribution of all preferential

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

I
Eariculars Number of % %o
shares of helding Number of shares of holding
S § Natural Resources Pvl. Lid. 50,00,000 100% 50,00,000 100%
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For the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Al Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)
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(U]

i)

(i)

fiv)

)

(f) Shareholding pattern of promoters are as follows
As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Number of % % change Number of shares % % change during
Name of the promoters shares of holding during the of holding the year
vear
Equity shares
S5 Malural Resources Pyl Lid 50,00,000 100% 0.00% 50,00,000 100% 0. OD%J

any bonus shares during the immedialely preceding five years,

(g) The Company has not issued shares for consideralion olher than cash in the preceding five years, Further, the Company has neither boughl back any shares nor issued

Other equity

As at As at
Fartisulare 31stMarch 2025 | 31st March 2024
Reserves & Surplus
Capilal Reserve 34,813.78 3481378
Securities Premium 38,000.32 39,000.32
Amalgamation Reserve 2,636.11 2,636.11
Relained Earnings 14,848.47 14,301.58
Other Comprehensive Income
Equily Inslruments through Other Comprehensive Income 81,300.00 68,150.00
Total of other equity 1,72,598.68 1,58,901.79
Nature and purpose of reserves
Capital reserve
Capilal reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act. 2013.

4 As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 34,813.78 33,749.57
Addilions during the year* - 1,064.22
Balance at the end of the year 34,813.78 34,813.78

*The remaining balance in the CIRP cost liability of Rs. 1064.22 Lakhs transferred lo capilal reserve as no further payment on this account is payable.

Securities premium

Securilies premium is used to record the premium received on Ihe issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

¥ As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 39,000.32 39,000.32
Additions during the year - :
Balance at the end of the year 39,000.32 39,000.32

Amalgamation Reserve

the provisions of the Acl.

Amalgamation reserve is used lo record the surplus created on merger of Ramsarup Loh Udyog with Ramsarup Industries Limited. Tne reserve is ulilised in accordance with

Balance at the end of the year

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,636.11 2,636.11
Additions curing the year - -
2,636.11 2,636.11

Retained Earnings :

Relained earnings pertain to the accumulaled earnings / {losses) made by the Company over the years.. Retained eamings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined
benefil plans, nel of laxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Lass. Movement for the year is as follows:

] As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 14,301.59 15,244.92
Addi{Less) : Transferred from statement of profit and loss 56276 (942.34)
Addi{Less): Other Comprehensive Loss for the year {net of taxes) {15.87) -
Balance at the end of the year 14,848.47 14,301.58
Equity component of financial instrument - 0% Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs.10 each.

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
0% Opticnally Converlible Debantures 81,300.00 68,150.00




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113

For the year ended 31st March, 2025
(ANl Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

(i) Reconciliation of number of 0% optiobally convertible Debentures outstanding al the beginning and the end of the period

¥ As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Balance at the begining of the year 68,150.00 -
Add : lssued during the year 13,150.00 £8,150.00
Balance at the end of the year 81,300.00 £8,150.00
The company nhas issued 13,15,00,000 nes of unsecured,0% Oplionally Converlible Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each during this financial year.
(i) |Particulars of Debenture holders holding more than 5% of Oplionally Convertible Debentures
As at As at
Name of Debenture holder 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Number of o Number of %
debentures of holding debentures of holding
Shyam Sel & Power Ltd. 47,90,00,000 58.92% 39,00,00,000 57.23%
Promolional Equily Services Pvl Lid 33,40.00,000 41.08% 29,15.00,000 42 77%

{iii)

15 | Lease Liability
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Non Current Lease Liability 18.25 1971
Current Lease Liability 6.19 3,16
ota 24.45 22.87
: 3. ovons : As at As at
her F
16 |Other Financial Liabilities 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Non-Current
Relention Money 346.86 158.03
Total 346,86 158.03
17 |Long term provisions
. As at As al
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Provision for Emplovee Benefits
Provision for gratuily { Refer Nole 39) 5276 2319
Provision for compensaled absences (Refer Note 39) = 3.92
Total 52.76 2711 )
18 |Current Borrowings
As at As at

Terms / rights attached to 0% Optionally Convertible Debentures

The optiontly convertible debenlures shall be convertible al the option of the Issuer company at any lime post alloiment after the expiry of 2 years bul before completion of
period of 10 years from the date of alloimenl. The debentures are convertible in the ratio of 59 equily shares (till 4th of May, 2024) and afier thal 57 equity shares of the
company for every 10000 debentures held The Debenlures are unsecured and unlisted . The Equity Shares as allotted upon conversion of debentures shall rank pari-passu
in all respects wilh Ihe exisling Equity Shares of the Company.

Particulars

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

Secured, replyable on demand
From Banks:

Working Capital Term Loan 6,032,869 -
Unsecured

From Related Parties 8.321.03 666406
Total 14,353.72 6,664.06

charge on movable fixed assels of the Company.

{a) Cash credit facilities from banks carry interest ranging belween 7.45% p.a. - 9.05% p.a. (31 March 2024 : 7.8% p.a. - 9.3% p.a.), compuled on a daily basis on the
actual amount utilised, and are repayable on demand. These are secured by way of hypothecation of the Company's enlire current assels and further secured by second

(b} Unsecured Loans :

Loans from Ralated Parlies / Group Companias carries interest rate of 6.5% per annum till 31,12.2023, thereafter the rate of inlerest is B.5% per annum..

19 |Trade Payable
i As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
a) Tolal oulslanding dues of Small Enlerprises and Micro enlerprises 121.83 8340
b) Total outstanding dues of credilors other than small enterprises and micro enlerprises 16,728.51 1,506.98
Total 16,850.34 1,580,328

ered 4.
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(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, uniess otherwise slated)
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20

21

22

23

-

Disclosure Required Under Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (The Acl ) are as follows:

available with the company)

{as per the information

particul As at As at
articulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
1, Principal amount remaining unpaid lo any supplier as al the end of the accounting year. 121.83 B340
2. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid lo any supplier as at lhe end of the accounting year. - =
3. The amounl of inlerest paid by lhe company in lerms of seclion 16 of the Micro , Small and Medium Enlerprise Development -
Act, 2008, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appoinled day during the accounling year.
4. The amount of interest due and payabie for the period of delay in making paymenl (which have been paid bul beyond the -
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interes! specified under the Micro, Small, and Medium Enlerprises =
Development Acl, 2006,
5. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ai the end of the accounling year, - =
6. The amount of further inleres| remaining due and payable even in the succeading years, unlil such date when the interest -
dues above are actually paid to lhe small enterprise , for the purpose of disallowance of a deduclible expendilure under section
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises Development Act, 2006.
Trade payables ageing is as follows: QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
As at 31 March 2025
(i} Undisputed- MSME 121.83 - - - 121.83
(i) Undisputed- Others 16,728.51 : = 16,728.51
(ii1) Disputed dues- MSME 2 = = - =
(iv) Disputed dues- olhers = - = - -
Total 16,850,234 - - . 16,850,234
As at 31 March 2024
(i) Undisputed- MSME 83,40 - = 83.40
(i) Undisputed- Others 1,506.98 - - 1,506.98
{iii) Disputed dues- MSME " ” - ”
{iv) Dispuled dues- olhers - - ” =
Total 1,590.38 . - . 1,590.38 |
Other financial liabilities

As at As at
Pasticulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Current
Cradilors for Capilal Expenditures 2,012.05
Payable 1o Employees 16067 BB.01
Total 2179.72 8e.01
Other current liabilities

] As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Advance from Cuslomer 21.87 2891
Statutory Dues payable 16.20 36.96
TDSITCS Payable 36.38 -
Provision for Expenses 32.50 -
Total 106.95 65.87
Short term provisions

As at As at
Farticulors 31stMarch 2025 | 31st March 2024
Pravision for graluity ( Refer Note 36) - 0.34
Provision for compensated absences (Refer Nole 36) 21.30 023
Provision For Bonus 61.63 26.90
Total B82.94 27.47

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2025

For the year ended
31st March 2024

Sale of products
Sale of power

27,837.00
718.80

Total

28,555,80
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Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Interest on Fixed Deposil 56.34 4B.78
Total 56.34 48,79
Cost of Materials Consumed

For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2023

Opening slock- Raw malerials
Add. Purchase
Less: Closing slock - Raw Materials

2644477

Material consumed )
Freiaht Inward BEEB )
Total 26,530.45 .

Changes in inventories

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2025

For the year ended
31st March 2024

Opening slock
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Scrap & Bye-Product

Closing stack
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Scrap & Bve-Product

1,732.38

{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

{1,732:38}

Employee benefit expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Salary wages & bonus 753.25 -
Contribulion o Provident & olher Funds 17.46 -
Graluily & Leave Encashment 41.45 -
Total 812.16 -

Finance cost

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars J1st March 2025 31st March 2024

Interest to Bank & Others 370.45 -

Interest cost on Lease Liability 1.58 1.58
372.02 1.58

Total

Depreciation & amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Depracialion on property, plant and equipment -Owned assels-{Refer note 5) 1,350.29 B56.77
Depreciation on properly. plant and equipmenl -Leased assels- (Refer Note 5) 276 -
Total 1,353.05 B56.77

Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2025

For the year ended
31st March 2024

Auditors Remuneration 7.00 3.00
Repairs & Maintenance - -
-Plant & Machinery 2029 -
-Others 899 -
Power & Fuel 59.14 -
Stores & Spares Consumed 415.58 -
Qffice & Other Rent 11.17 2529
Postage & Courier Expenses 0.04 -
Printing & Slalionery 0.01 -
Rales & Taxes 1.58 -
Allowance for Credil Loss 235 %
Sundry Balances written off - 16.64
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 1.60 -
Hire Charges 94.98 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 91.36 3.75
Total 714,09 48,69
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CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113

For the year ended 31st March, 2025
(AN Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. |Payments to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)

For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Statutory Audit Fees (including Limiled Reviews) 6.50 3.00
Tax Audit Fees 0.50 -
Total 7.00 3.00

31 |Tax Expenses
For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Current Tax
In respect of the currenl year * -

Deferred tax charped / (eredil) - -

In respect of prior vear (Earlier Years TDS Receivable writlen off) - B5.09
Subtotal - 85,09
Deferred tax
MMAT Entillement Credit . -
Subtotal E =
Total 4 85.09

32 |Earnings per share

The Company's Earnings Per Share (EPS) is determined based on the nel profit / (loss) atiributable 1o Ihe shareholders of the company. Basic earnings per share is
computed using the weighled average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of
common and dilutive commen equivalent shares oulstanding during thal particular year including share options, except where the resull would be anli-dilutive

For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Profil attribulable to the equily holders of the Company (A) (INR in lakhs) 546.89 (943.24)
Waighled Average number of shares issued for Basic EPS (B) 50,00.000.00 50,00,000.00
Adjustment for calculation af Diluted EPS on 47.84,100.00 14,00,468.00
accoun! ofissue of OCD
Weighted Average number of shares issued for 97.84,100.00 64,00,468.00
Diluled EPS (D= B+C)
Basic EPS in Rs. 10.94 (18.87)
Diluted EPS in Rs. 5.59 (18.87)

33 |Effect of Resolution Plan approved by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT})

Company was admilled into Corporate Insolvency Resolution Plan (CIRP) under Insolvency and Bankruplcy Code 2016 on Bth January, 2018. Resolution Plan submilled by
S S Nalural Resources Pvt. Lid and Shyam Sel and Power Lid was approved by the Hon'ble NCLT on 4th September 2019, Appeals filed against the abovesaid order were
dismissed by Hon'tle National Company Law Appellale Tribunal (NCLAT) on 4th March, 2021. Due to multifarious litigations filed by several parlies, the Resolution Plan and
the implementation thereto, achieved finality pursuant to an order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India on 12th May, 2022 The Monitoring Agency handed over the
managemenl and control of the Company and Sucessiul Resolution Applicanls contributed Lhe requisile sum as per the approved resclution plan,

The Non-susiainable debl was converied inlo equily shares of Ine Corporale Debtor. The entire shareholding of Ihe existing shareholders (other than the new equity shares

bul including converted equily shares) of the Corporate Deblor was subject lo Capital Reduction process and was reduced to nil / extinguished.

Accordingly, pursuant lo the Resolution plan as approved by the Hor'ble NCLT order confirmed bythe Hon'ble NCLAT as above, Ihe existing equily share capital and
preference share capital of Rs. 3,507.85 Lakhs and Rs. 2,695.99 Lakhs respectively has been cancelled and transferred to capilal reserve, The holding company had
conlribuled Rs. 500.00 Lakhs towards allolment of 50,00,000 no. of equily shares of the company in terms of the resolution plan. Entire preference share capital of the
company comprising of 2,69,59,920 no, of shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each alongwilh any preference dividend, whether due or not, had alsc been cancelled.

o
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Capital Management

The Company's capital management is intended 1o create value for shareholders by facilitaling the meeting of long term and short term goals of the
Company. The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long term and short term
sirategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from operations, long-term and short-term
bank borrowings and issue of non-convertible debt securities. The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio
and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.

0 As at As al
SR 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Borrowings (long-term and short-term Refer Note- 18 ) 14,353.72 6,664.06
Lease Liabilities(Refer Note 15) 24.45 22.87
Trade Payables (Refer Nole 19) 16,850.34 1,590.38
Less: cash and cash equivalents (257.98) (475.94)
Adjusted net debt (A) 30,970.52 7,801.37
Equity share capital (refer note 13 ) 500.00 500,00
Other Equity (refer 14) 1,72,598.68 1,58,901.79
Total Equity (B) 1,73,098.68 1,59,401.79
Capital and net debt (B} / (&) 5.59 20,43
Gearing ratio 15% 5%

Financial Risk Management

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to support its operations. The Company's financial assels include investments, loans, rade
and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

‘The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior management oversees the management of these
risks, The company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk commitiee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the
Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objeclives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
risk, which are summarised as below:

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk

» Liquidity risk, and

« Market risk

(A) Market risk |

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risks. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings in foreign currencies.

a) Interest rate risk b
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company's exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long term debt obligations with fioating
interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the
Company is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

particulars Year enced Year ended
: 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Variable rate borrowings 6,032.69 -
Fixed rale borrowings 8,321.03 5,664.06

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivily o a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings aflecled.
With all other variable held constant, the Company's profit/(loss) before tax is affected through the impacl on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Effect on Profit before tax
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024/
Increase by 50 basis points (31 March 2024: 50 bps) (30.18) -
Decrease by 50 basis points (31 March 2024: 50 bps) 30.16 -




(b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates Most of the
transactions are denominated in the Company's functional currency i.e. Rupees. Hence the Company |s not materially exposed to Foreign
Currency Risk.

B) Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counler-party failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or obligalions.
Credil risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks,

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and cantrol relating to
customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the
assessment both in terms of number of days and amount. Any Credit risk is curtailed with arrangements with third parties .

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables
are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure lo credit risk at the reporling date is the
carrying vaiue of each class of financial assets disclosed in Mote 8. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

(ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credil risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the
Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties . The Company's maximum exposure o credit risk for
the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is the carrying amount as illustrated in Note No 38.

(B) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain
sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by
estimating the future cash flows. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafis, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and
concluded it to be low. The Cormpany has access to a sufficient variely of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over
with exisling lenders,

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company has access to funds
from debt markets through commercial paper programs, non-convertible debentures and other debt instruments. The Company invests its surplus
funds in bank fixed deposit and in mutual funds, which carry no or low market risk.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments -

Contractual maturities of financial liahilities 1 s {Aves More than
March 31, 2025 yoalonless SRR 3 years
Contractual maturities of borrowings 14,353.72 - -
Contractual maturities of trade payables 16,850.34 . .
Contractual maturities of lease obligations 1.58 4.73 277.56
Other Financial Liabilities 2,526.57 - -
Total 33,732.21 4,73 277.56
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities More than
March 31, 2024 1 year or less 1-3 years S cerrs
Contractual maturities of borrowings 6,664.06 - =
Contractual maturities of trade payables 1,590.38
Contractual maturities of lease obligations 1.58 473 279.14
Other Financial Liabilities 246.05 - .
Total 8,502.07 4.73 279.14

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates Most of the
transactions are denominated in the Company's funclional currency i.e. Rupees. Hence the Company is not materially exposed 1o Foreign
Currency Risk.
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Employee benefits

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Graluity Act, 1872. Employees who are in continuous service for a period
of of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied with the number of years of service. The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and
maovements in the net defined obligalions over the year are as follows -

(i) Changes in defined benefit obligation

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 2353 7.58
Interest cost 1.56 0.55
Current service cost 24.14 13.51
Benefils Paid/adjusted (3.00) -

Acluarial loss/{gain) on obligations 6.53 1.88
Present Value obligation as at the end of the year 52.75 23.53




(ii) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Present Value obligationas at the end of the year 52.75 23.53
Fair value of plan assels as at the end of the year P -
MNet Liability recognized in balance sheet 52.75 23.53
{ili) Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss
Particulars Asat As at
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Current service cost " 24.14 =
Interest cost 1.56
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss 25.70 -
* Service cost of the year 2023-24 capitalised as the plant is under reconstruclion
{iv) Breakup of actuarial gainfloss:
Particulars Year ended Yearended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in financial assumption 11.26 341
Actuarial (gain)/less arising from experience adjustment (4.74) (1.52)
(v) Amount recognized in the statement of Other Comprehensive Income
P Year ended Year ended
P |
ithibd 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Acluarial gain/(loss) for the year on planned benefit obligations 6.53 =
(vi) Actuarial assumptions
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Discount rate 7.10% 6.62%
Future Salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement age (years) 58 58
Expected average remaining working life of employee (years) 23.44 21.3

The assumplions were developed by management with the assistance of independent acluarial appraisers. Discount factors are determined close
to each year end by reference o relevant economic markets and other related obligations. Other assumplions are based on management's

hislorica lexperience.

(vii) Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have

affected the defined benefit obligations by the amounts shown below:

31st March 2025

31 March 2024

Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 47.59 58.85 21.32 26,27
Future salary growth (1% movement) 58.83 47.52 26.27 21.28
(viii) Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
1 year
Between 2-5 years

Between 6-10 years

0.52
15.22

12.15

0.34
3.40

4.57

(ix) Description of risk exposures

Valualions are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed

to various risks as follows:

Risk

Description

Market risk (interest rate)

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and
fluctuations of the financial markets. The discount rate reflects the time value of
maney. An increase in discount rate leads lo decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation
of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the
corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to
fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date

Longevity risk

the longevity risk is not very material

The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before
retirement age or after. Typically for the benefits paid on or before the retirement age,

Future salary increase risk

Actual Salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result
in increase lo the obligation at a rate that is higher than expected

%k Kolkats
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Demographic risk

If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rates, the benefits will
be paid earlier than expected. Similarly if the actual withdrawal rates are lower than
assumed, the benefits will be paid later than expecled. The impact of this will depend
on the demography of the Company and the financials assumptions

Regulatory risk

Any changes to the current Regulations by the Government, will increase (in most
cases) or decrease the obligation which is not anticipated. Sometimes, the increase
is many fold which will impact the financials quite significantly

Disclosure related to Leases
Additions to Right of Use

a As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Leasehold Land - (659.74)
Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting year
: As at As at
fadioviars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 497.38 1,159.88
Additions/ (Deduction) - (659.74)
Depreciation charge for the year 2.76 2.76
Balance at the end of the year 494.62 497.38
{ii) Movement in Lease liabilities:
Particulars Se aye
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024 |
Balance at the beginning of the year 22,87 1,159,688
Additions during the year 1.58 (659.74)
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.58
Payment of Lease liabilities for the year - 0
Balance at the end of the year 24.45 22.87
(i) Classification into Current & Nen-Current
Particulars haat As at
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Lease liabilities - Non-Current 18.25 19.71
Lease liabilities - Current 6.19 3.16
(ivi Amount recognised in Profit or Loss:
Particulars i A998
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Interest on lease liabilities 1.58 1.58
Total 1.58 1.58
(v) Amount recognised in the statement of cash flows:
2 As at As at
Rarticulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Total cash outflow of | including cash outflow for short term leases and | of low value 1.58 1.58
Total 1.58 1.58

There is no significant liquidily risk wilh regard to its lease liabilities as the current assels are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease

liabilities as and when due.
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Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: UB5993WB1979PLCD32113
For the year ended 31 March, 2025

38 Fair Value Measurements {All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount Fair value
Fatiouiah Note No.|  FVTPL FVTOCI ket Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 March 2025
Financial Assets
Investment in equily instruments - - - - - - - E
Irvsestment in mutual funds/AIF - - - - - - > =
Trade receivables 9 - - 467.03 467.03 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalenls 10 - - 257.98 257.98 - = = .
Other bank balances 1 - - 5.49 5.48 - - % =
" - - 730.50 730.50 - - a 2
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 19 - - 14,353.72 14,353.72 - - - -
Lease Liabililies 16 - - 24,45 24.45 - - = &
Trade payable 20 - - 16,850.34 16,850.34 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 16& 20 - - 2,526.57 2,526.57 - - - -
- - 33,755.08 33,755.08 - - = -
As al 31 March 2024
Financial Assels
Invesiment in equity instruments - - = %
Investment in mutual funds/AlF - = %
Trade receivables 9 - - 52.57 52.57 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 10 - - 475,94 475.94 * - - -
Other bank balances 11 - - 141.71 141.71 - - - -
- - 670.23 670.23 - - - =
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 19 - - 6,664.08 6,664.06 - - - N
Lease Liabilities 16 - - 2287 22.87 - - - -
Trade payable 20 - - 1,590.38 1,590.38 - - - -
Dther financial liabilities 16& 20 - - 246.05 246.05 - - - »
- - 8,523.36 B,523.36 - - - .

B. Fair value hierarchy
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b}
measured at amortised cost and far which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used In determining
fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath
the table.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. For example, listed equity instruments that have quoted market price.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, fraded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues
which maximise Ihe use of observable markel dala and rely as litlle as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in leve| 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable markel data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equily securilies, contingent
consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3,




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.

CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31 March, 2025

C. Fair value measurementis

(i) Shorl-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximalely equal to their fair value,

{iii) Fair v-a!ue of borrowings which have a quoted marke! price in an aclive markel is based on ils markel price which |s categorized as level 1. Fair value of borrowings which do not have
an aclive market or are unquoted is estimated by discounting expecled future cash flows using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return adjusted for credit spread considered

by lentisrs for instruments of similar maturities which Is categorized as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

(iv) Management uses its best judgment in estimaling the fair value of ils financial instruments. However, there are inherent limilations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for
substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimales presented above are nol necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale
transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

(v) During the periods mentioned above, there have been no transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, current |oans, other current financial assets, trade payables, current borrowings and other current financial liabilities

are considered to be approximately equal te the fair value,

(a) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost, FVTPL and FVTOCI

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Carrying Carrying
RS Fair value ot Fair value
Financial Assets
Carried at amortised cost
Trade receivables 467.03 467.03 52.57 52.57
Cash and cash equivalents 257.98 257.98 47594 | 475.94
Diher bank balances 5,49 5.49 141.71 141,71
Total 730.50 730.50 670.23 670.23
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Carrying 3 Carrying ’
e Fair value At Fair value
Financial Liabilities
Carried at amortised cost
Borrowings 14,353.72 14,353.72 6,664.06 €,664.06
Lease Liabilities 24.45 24,45 2287 22.87
Trade payable 16,850.34 16,850.34 1,590.38 1,590.38
Other financial liabilities 2.526.57 2,526.57 246.05 246.05
Total 23,755.08 33,755.08 8,523.36 8,523.38
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Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN : Us5993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2025

(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Ratio Analysis

Current Ratio =Current assets divided by current liabilities

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Current assets 20,496.02 7,868.59
Current habilities 33,579.86 8,438.96
Ratio 0.61 0.93
% Change from previous year -35% 566%

Reason for change more than 25%;

Variance is mainly due to increase in trade payables, current borrowings and financial liability due lo growth in the operations of the company

Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Shareholder’s Equity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current borrowings

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024

Tolal debt 14,353.72 6,664.06
Shareholder's Equity 1,73,098.68 1,59,401.79
Ratio 0.08 0.04
% Change from previous year 98.35% -92.18%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Variance is mainly due to increase in borrowings during the year

Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after taxes - preference dividend divided by average shareholder's equity

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Profit / Loss for the year 562.76 (943.34)
Sharehalder's equity 1,66,250.24 1,25,266.35
Return on equity 0.003 (0.01)
% Change from previous period [ year -144.95% -133.88%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Varinace is due to increase in profit during the year

Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of goods sold divided by average inventory

Particulars

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

Inventory Turnover Ratio

Cost of goods sold 28,555.80
Average Inventory 5,209.50 -
5.48 =

% Change from previous period / year

Reason far change more than 25%:

The variance is due to growth in operations of the company in the current year and consequently increase in inventory

Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Net Credit Sales divided by Average Trade Receivables

TR 31stMarch 2025 | 31st March 2024
Net Credit Sales 28,555.80 i
Average Trade Receivables 259.80 -
Ratio 109.91 -

% Change from previous period / year

Reason for change more than 25%:
The variance is due to increase in Sales in the current year due to growth in operations

Trade payables turnover ratio = Net Credit purchases divided by Average Trade Payables

Particulsrs 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Net Credit Purchases 26,530.45 -
Average Trade Payables 9,220.36 1,590.38
Ratio 2.88 -

% Change from previous period [ year

Reason for change more than 25%:
The variance is due lo increase in purchases in the current year which is a result of growth

in operations of the company




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN : U65993WB1979PLC032113

Net capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Working Capital where Working Capital= Current Assets - Current Liabilities

FACINS 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Net sales 28,555.80 -
Working capital (13,083.83) (570.36)
Ratio (2.18) <

% Change from previous period / year . i
Reason for change more than 25%:

The variance is due to increase in sales in the current year due lo growth in operations

Net profit ratio = Net profit after taxes divided by Net Sales

e vmcag 31stMarch 2025 |  31stMarch 2024
Nel profit / loss after taxes 562.76 (943.34)
Nel Sales” 28,555.80 -
Ratio 2% U%-F
% Change from previous period / year W E
Reason for change more than 25%:

The variance is due to increase in sales in the currenl year

Return on Capital employed =Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT) divided by Capital Employed

Earicular: 31stMarch 2025 |  31st March 2024
Earning before interest and taxes 924,78 (856.67)
Capital Employed 1,73,098.68 1,59,401.79
Ratio 0.5% -0.5%
% Change from previous period / year -200% -159%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Variance is due lo increase in profit during the year
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Other Disclosures
Details of Benami Property held : The Compant dees nol hold any Benami Properly and hence there are no proceedings initialed or pending against the Company fer holding any banami praperty under the Benami Transactions
(ProhibitionsjAct, 1888 and Ihe Rules made thereunder, hence no such disclosure is required o be given as such

Wilful Defaulter ; The Company has nol been declared wilful defauller as al the dale of Ihe balance sheet or on the dale of approval of the financial stalements, hence no disclosure is required as such

Long Term and Derivalive Contract : The Company did nol have any long lerm conltract including derivalive contracts for which any malerial forseeable losses.

Investor Education and Protection Fund : There are no amounts which are required lo be Iransferred 1o the Investor Educalion and Proleclion Fund.

Registration of Charges or Satisfaction wilh Reqgistrar of Companies (ROC) ; There are some charges appearing in 1he site of Minisiry of Corporale Alfairs, which are relaled lo Pre GRIP Period, Ihese salisfaclions were the
responsibililies of the old Management. However, we are in discussion with bankers (Charge Holders) to obtain their NOC for the purpose of filing satisfaction of charges with MCA.
Other than the above mentioned charges, we donol have any registralion/salisfaction charges ihal are yel lo be registered with ROC,

Compliance with number of layers of Companies : The Company does nol have any invesimenl in any downstream companies for which it has to comply with the number of layers prescribed under Clause (B7) of Seclion 2 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read wilh Companies (Restriclionon number of layers) Rules, 2017, hence no disclosure is required as such

Utilization of Borrowings : The Company does not have any outslanding balances lowards Ine borrowings from banks and financial institutions at the balance sheet date, hence no disclosure is required as such.
Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency : The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or virtual Currency during the financial year, hence no disclosure is required as such,

Disclosure of Transaction with Struck off Companies : The Company did not have any transaclion with companies struck off under Seclion 248 of the Companies Acl, 2013 or Seclion 560 of \he Companies Acl, 1956 during lhe
lainancial year.

Title Deed of Immovable Property : The litle deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company excepl for land situated in Durgapur, the lille deeds of which are nol available with the company. Also, due 1

Utilization of Borrowed Funds : The Company has nol advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities(inlermediaries) wilh Ihe underslanding thal the Company shall ;

directly or indirectly lend or invest inother persons or entities identifeied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company({Ultimate Beneliciaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or lhe like on behalfl of the Ullimate Beneficiaries,

The Company has not recelved any fund from any persan(s) or entily{ies), including foreign entilies {funding party) wilh the understanding {whelher recorded in wriling or otherwise) lhat lhe Company shall;

directly or indireclly lend or invesl in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
pravide any guaranlee, secunty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
Undisclosed Income : The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income during the current or previous year in the lax assessments under lhe Income Tax Act, 1981,

During the year, due to accumulated Business Loss and Unabsorbed Depreciation and other benefits if any, as compuled in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act 1961, Ihere is no Deferred Tax Liability. Howaver,
Deferred Tax Assels could be crealed bul in absence of convincing evidences and virtual certainty for realizalion of such "deferred lax assets”, agains! fulure laxable income and also in view of the prudent accounling policy,
deferred tax assel has nol been recognized

Details related to borrowings secured against current assets

The Company has given current assets as securily for borrowings obtained from banks. The Company duly submilted the required
informaltion wilh the banks on regular basis and lhe required reconcilialion is presented below:

Quarter ended Particulars Amount as Amount as Amount of difference [Reason for material variations
per books reported in
of accounts | the quarterly

retien |
Faor the year ended 31 March 2025
31 March 2025 - Trade receivables & Inventories 8107.26 £107.26 R
31 December 2024 - Trade receivables & Inventories 10,081.14 10,081.14 .
There are not material variations.
30 September 2024 - Trade receivables & Invenlories 5,534.68 5,534.68 -

30 June 2024 - Trade receivabies & Invenlories 437332 437332 =
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